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DALE CHECKET RAGGIO, in her capacity as Trustee of The Marital Deduction 

Portion and Credit Share of the William J. Raggio Family Trust and individually (“Mrs. 

Raggio”), hereby objects to the Commissioner’s (1) Recommendation For Denial of Motion for 

Partial Summary Judgment, and (2) Recommendation Holding Motion To Compel Written 

Discovery in Abeyance, entered on January 9, 2018.1  

I. INTRODUCTION 

This case concerns breach of fiduciary duty claims, amongst other claims, that two 

Remainder Beneficiaries (Leslie Righetti and Tracy Chew) have asserted against the trustee of a 

marital trust. The trustee, Mrs. Raggio, is also the lifetime beneficiary of this marital trust, 

entitled to the income therefrom as well as distributions for her health, maintenance, and support. 

There is a separate trust also at play, a credit shelter trust, of which Mrs. Raggio is the lifetime 

beneficiary and trustee. The remainder beneficiaries of this separate credit shelter trust are not 

parties to this case. Ms. Righetti and Ms. Chew have no rights, including no right to an 

accounting, under this separate credit shelter trust. 

The Commissioner previously agreed that the Remainder Beneficiaries of the marital 

trust were not entitled to an accounting of the credit shelter trust and denied Ms. Chew’s petition 

requesting the same. She further concluded that the marital and credit trusts (referred to 

collectively as the “Subtrusts”) should not be read “jointly” and that there was no mandate for a 

comparable spend-down of the two subtrusts.  

In pursuing partial summary judgment, Mrs. Raggio merely sought to apply this same 

construction to the present claims asserted by the Remainder Beneficiaries, thereby limiting their 

attempts to prove up their claims by comparing and contrasting the distributions between the 

Subtrusts. The Commissioner, however, concludes that because the present procedural posture of 

the case is different, such a comparison is permissible. In so doing, the Commissioner suggests 

that the Remainder Beneficiaries of the marital trust are indeed entitled to investigate the 

                                                 
1Mrs. Raggio does not object to the Commissioner’s Recommendation to hold a decision on the 
Motion to Compel Written Discovery in abeyance, pending the entry of either a Confirming 
Order to the Recommendation on the Motion for Partial Summary Judgment or an Order upon 
Judicial Review. 
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Trustee’s decision-making and spending with respect to the credit shelter trust, in pursuing their 

breach of fiduciary duty claims. The Commissioner thus opens the door to the Remainder 

Beneficiaries of the marital trust to obtain a de facto accounting of the credit shelter trust, a 

request that she previously properly rejected. Notably, the Commissioner cites to no legal 

authority for this about face.  

Moreover, the Commissioner misconstrues the objective of Mrs. Raggio’s motion. Mrs. 

Raggio merely sought to apply the same construction of the subtrust language to the claims 

currently asserted by the Remainder Beneficiaries.  Applying the same construction does not 

altogether eliminate those claims. Instead, it narrows and focuses the scope of the claims. To be 

clear, even if this Court were to grant Mrs. Raggio’s summary judgment motion as the 

Commissioner failed to do, this lawsuit would continue. But the scope of the claims, as well as 

the discovery needed to support such claims, would proceed in the appropriately narrowed 

context.  

Based on the foregoing, the Recommendation is erroneous. This Court should reverse the 

Recommendation and enter partial summary judgment in Mrs. Raggio’s favor. 

II. ARGUMENT 

A. The Commissioner Fails To Analyze Claim And Issue Preclusion 
 

The crux of Mrs. Raggio’s briefing asserts that either claim or issue preclusion, or both, 

limit the nature of the Remainder Beneficiaries’ current claims for relief. Mrs. Raggio’s briefs 

analyzed the elements of both legal theories, and the opposition brief attempted to rebut those 

arguments. In turn, the Recommendation includes no analysis of either claim or issue preclusion. 

Instead, the Recommendation implies that neither theory applies because the claims or issues 

presented are somehow distinct from those originally pursued by Ms. Chew. At a minimum, the 

District Court should re-evaluate whether claim or issue preclusion applies, and expressly set 

forth its analysis in an order.  

/// 

/// 

/// 
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B. The Commissioner Fails To Articulate The Basis In Nevada Trust Law For 
The Denial Of Partial Summary Judgment 

 

 Despite previously construing the Subtrusts as not imposing any “comparable spend 

down” mandate and rejecting any “joint reading” of the Subtrusts, the Commissioner now 

concludes that the Remainder Beneficiaries of the marital trust are nevertheless entitled to 

investigate the nature of the spend down from both Subtrusts, and assess one against the other, in 

order to establish a possible breach of fiduciary duty by the Trustee. The Recommendation 

frames the dispute this way: “the present question is whether the Trustee who does that spending 

breaches her fiduciary duties when she makes choices under the two Subtrusts – choices that 

might not have been properly executed when measured under Trust law.” (emphasis added). 

And yet, the Commissioner fails to identify the applicable “Trust law” she relies upon in 

reaching her decision.2  

The Recommendation thus supports the proposition that, even in the absence of binding 

Nevada legal authority on point, a trustee owes equal duties to two different sets of beneficiaries 

of two distinct trusts.3 But Mrs. Raggio, as Trustee of two distinct Subtrusts, does not have 

equivalent obligations to two distinct sets of remainder beneficiaries of two separate trusts. Nor 

should  the extent and nature of distributions Mrs. Raggio may have made from the Credit 

Shelter Trust be considered or weighed in determining the reasonableness of the Marital Trust 

distributions. Ultimately, the Court should not weigh Mrs. Raggio’s actions as trustee of the 

Marital Trust against her actions as trustee of the Credit Shelter Trust for purposes of 

determining whether Mrs. Raggio has breached any duties to Righetti and Chew. 

 Finally, the Commissioner acknowledges that “[t]he above analysis is admittedly not 

                                                 
2For example, the Commissioner does not address, or attempt to distinguish, statutory authority 
directly on point, specifically NRS 163.4175, which provides that “[e]xcept as otherwise 
provided in the trust instrument, the trustee is not required to consider a beneficiary’s assets or 
resources in determining whether to make a distribution of trust assets.” 
3The Remainder Beneficiaries cited to a single Nevada Supreme Court decision, Matter of W.N. 
Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, 393 P.3d 1090, 1094 (Nev. 2017), in their 
September 8, 2017 Motion to Compel Written Discovery, for the broad proposition that a trustee 
must treat all beneficiaries equally. In response, Mrs. Raggio distinguished the holding of the 
case and established that it could not be read as broadly as the Remainder Beneficiaries wished. 
See September 25, 2017 Opposition to Motion to Compel Written Discovery, at 11-12. 
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crystal clear,” and acknowledges the “very fine distinctions that can be argued in reference to 

this pending case in all its aspects.” Recommendation at 2:23-25. Mrs. Raggio respectfully 

submits that the summary analysis presented in the Recommendation does not adequately 

analyze, nor does it recognize, these fine distinctions that Mrs. Raggio intended to raise with her 

motion. Accordingly, judicial review is warranted. 

C. The Commissioner Misapprehends The Scope Of the Requested Relief 

The Commissioner’s Recommendation further misapprehends the scope of relief sought 

by Mrs. Raggio. It appears that the Commissioner understood the motion as seeking an outright 

dismissal of the Remainder Beneficiaries’ claims. For example, the Commissioner characterizes 

the relief sought by Mrs. Raggio this way: “The current Motion, assert(s) that this Court has 

already ruled on the matters of spending limits designed by the Settlor under the Subtrusts and 

that, therefore, the claims against the Trustee must fail on the grounds of claim preclusion and 

issue preclusion.” Recommendation at 2:8-11.  The statement that the claims “must fail” is not 

qualified in any fashion. Subsequently, the Commissioner observes that she previously found and 

recommended that the claims brought by the Remainder Beneficiaries under their Amended 

Complaint were viable. Id., at 2:20-21. Both of these statements thus imply that Mrs. Raggio was 

seeking outright dismissal of the Remainder Beneficiaries’ claims. This is not the case. 

Mrs. Raggio’s briefing took great pains to clarify that the claims asserted could proceed, 

but that the Remainder Beneficiaries would have to prove their case by solely examining and 

weighing Mrs. Raggio’s actions as they relate to the Marital Trust. For example, Mrs. Raggio’s 

briefing noted: 

Righetti and Chew also allege that Dale made discretionary distributions to 
herself (as the beneficiary) from the Marital Trust that were excessive and not for 
her necessary support, care and maintenance, and that such conduct also supports 
some of their claims. To the extent Righetti’s and Chew’s claims allege this 
alternative theory, such theory is not part of this partial summary judgment 
motion. Rather, this motion seeks to dismiss those claims that are based on the 
legal theory that Dale was obligated to consider other resources in determining the 
amount necessary for her health, maintenance and support from the Marital Trust. 
 

See July 19, 2017 Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, at 3, fn. 2 (emphasis added). Similarly, 

footnote 1 of Mrs. Raggio’s Reply clarified again that: 

PA-0683
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To be clear, Mrs. Raggio’s is not seeking wholesale summary judgment. Rather, 
Remainder Beneficiaries may pursue their claims with respect to the Marital Trust and 
Mrs. Raggio’s necessity for and use of discretionary distributions from the Marital Trust. 

 
See August 24, 2017 Reply at 2, fn. 1. And again at pages 10-11 of the Reply: 

To be clear, Mrs. Raggio agrees that Remainder Beneficiaries are entitled to an 
accounting of the Marital Trust (which has been provided three years in a row), 
and they are entitled to investigate whether Mrs. Raggio’s discretionary 
distributions from the Marital Trust were necessary for her health, support, and 
maintenance. But they are precluded from arguing that a determination of what is 
“necessary” with respect to the Marital Trust distributions hinges upon or should 
be weighed in any fashion against discretionary distributions from the Credit 
Shelter Trust. 

 

(emphasis added). 

Thus, to the extent the Commissioner denied Mrs. Raggio’s summary judgment motion 

based on a misunderstanding that the Remainder Beneficiaries’ claims could not proceed should 

the motion have been granted, this was error. Rather, granting Mrs. Raggio’s summary judgment 

motion would not terminate this case. Instead, it would appropriately focus the claims for relief 

on the marital trust alone, and the duties owed to the Remainder Beneficiaries of that trust alone.  

III. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, Mrs. Raggio objects to the Recommendation and requests that 

the District Court review de novo the summary judgment briefing. 

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding 

document does not contain the Social Security number of any person. 

 DATED this 22nd day of January 2018  
HOLLAND & HART LLP 
 
/s/ Tamara Reid   
Tamara Reid, Esq. 
HOLLAND & HART LLP 

                                                                                5441 Kietzke Lane, Second Floor 
                                                                                Reno, Nevada  89511 

 
/s/ John Echeverria    
John Echeverria, Esq. 
Echeverria Law Office 
9432 Double R Boulevard 
Reno, NV 89521 
 
Attorneys for Dale Raggio 
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-o0o- 

RENO, NEVADA, TUESDAY, APRIL 3RD, 2018, 9:00 A.M.

-o0o-

THE COURT:  Good morning.  Thank you, Deputy.  

Please be seated. 

Counsel, will you begin with your appearances, 

please?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  John Echeverria appearing for 

Ms. Raggio, the trustee, and beneficiaries. 

THE COURT:  Good morning. 

MS. REID:  And Tamara Reid for the same parties. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. MOWRY:  Bart Mowry, your Honor, on behalf of 

Leslie Raggio Righetti. 

MR. SCHAERER:  Enrique Schaerer, your Honor, good 

morning, on behalf of Leslie Raggio Righetti. 

MR. ROSENAUER:  Good morning, your Honor.  Mike 

Rosenauer on behalf of Tracy Raggio Chew. 

THE COURT:  We are here on an objection to the 

Probate Commissioner's recommendation regarding summary 

judgment based upon arguments of issuing claim 

preclusion.  Counsel, you may presume accurately that the 

court has read all file materials and is familiar with 
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the issues.  

As the challenging party, Ms. Dale Raggio, through 

counsel, has the opportunity to begin.  Would you like to 

present any arguments, sir?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes, your Honor, briefly. 

If it please the court, we are here on a -- and I 

think it might help to get some background of some the 

other issues that have been decided.  The Senator died in 

February of 2012.  Thereafter, there's an accumulation of 

the assets and discussions went on as to what should be 

put into each of the two trusts, the subtrusts; that was 

negotiated with Mr. Mowry.  

There was some unusual twists in there actually 

that required us to hire one of the authors of the book 

on estate tax planning, and we eventually arrived at an 

agreement as to how the allocation should be done.  The 

tax return was filed in July of 2014.  

Thereafter, Mr. Rosenauer filed a petition seeking 

an accounting of the gap period between the date of his 

death and the date of the filing of the return.  The 

return was sent to all the beneficiaries and laid out. 

The petition argued that, one, the original 

petition that Judge Wright ruled on and then Judge 

Stiglich affirmed was an issue as to what extent the 

beneficiaries of the two trusts -- and it might be 
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helpful if you have a diagram, your Honor, of the two. 

THE COURT:  I've prepared one. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Okay.  Good. 

The issue presented that the original petitioner 

challenge by Mr. Rosenauer on behalf of Ms. Chew -- 

Ms. Chew was to what extent are the beneficiaries of the 

marital trust entitled to an accounting of the credit 

shelter trust.  That was argued and the ruling was that 

the beneficiaries of the marital trust were not entitled 

to seek an accounting or demand a proportional spend down 

of the two trusts.  Her ruling was that there was nothing 

in the law or in the trust document itself that supported 

such a conclusion. 

We then filed an accounting on behalf of the 

trustee to set forth what expenditures were made from the 

marital trust.  There was an objection to that, that 

issue was briefed and set for action hearing, I believe, 

at the end of July.  And, in the meantime, Mr. Rosenauer 

filed a 153 petition, Mr. Mowry filed a complaint seeking 

different remedies against Mrs. Raggio personally, not as 

the trustee. 

Those issues have been briefed and Judge -- or 

Commissioner Wright has ruled on some of those, albeit I 

think passed it on to you for ultimate decision based on 

your hearing.  
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What is pervading throughout this whole dispute is 

to what extent one set of beneficiaries on one trust are 

entitled to get an accounting and understanding of the 

distributions in another trust, and that's pervasive 

throughout all these pleadings.  In the meantime, after 

the filing of the motions and the 153 petition, discovery 

ensued and in the course of discovery the trustee was 

asked to provide information as to how she determines 

what to spend from the credit shelter trust.  

We basically opposed that on the basis of Judge 

Stiglich's affirmed Commissioner Wright's ruling that the 

beneficiaries of the marital trust, on this side of the 

room, were not entitled to seek an accounting or demand a 

proportional spend down of the credit shelter trust. 

Based on that, and in order to attempt to get a 

decision on that issue, because that's the issue that is 

driving all of these discovery requests and the onerous 

on what Ms. Raggio must do with respect to the credit 

shelter trust, which has a completely different set of 

beneficiaries, it also has a different set of successor 

trustees, so to look at -- well, what we did then is 

filed a motion for partial summary judgment not 

contending that the beneficiaries of the marital trust, 

Ms. Righetti and Ms. Chew, we didn't contend they're not 

entitled to get information as to what Mrs. Raggio is 
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spending the money and to what extent and whether it's a 

necessary.  That's wide open.  We're not here suggesting 

that she does not owe an accounting and a determination 

as to whether or not the spending of the marital trust is 

appropriate and -- 

THE COURT:  How can that be done without reference 

to -- to her access to other resources if the predicate 

is her proper support, care and maintenance?  How can 

that evaluation of her discretionary choice to support 

herself from one trust, how can it be measured without 

reference to how she's also supported elsewhere?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  It's measured by the intent of 

the settlor, the Senator, in terms of what he directed.  

In many trusts, I understand, the settlor says, you shall 

look first to this trust, then to that trust, and directs 

how it is to go.  In this case, the Senator did not 

express an intent on that.  The law does not demand a 

look at the other source of income. 

THE COURT:  Would you agree that one of his 

implicit intents was to preserve some trust corpus for 

the benefit -- for the benefit of his two daughters and 

not exhaust the bypass trust in favor of preserving the 

credit shelter trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I don't see where that's an 

expressed intent in the trust itself. 
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THE COURT:  Not expressed, but is it embedded in 

the trust structure, that his daughters would inherit 

something from the marital deduction trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I think that would depend on how 

long anybody lived, which is difficult to foresee in the 

future. 

What his intent was -- we have to look at the 

terms of the trust itself.  The trust itself does not 

mandate that.  It also mandates distributions to the 

different beneficiaries, so she owes a set of duties to 

one beneficiary set and a different set of duties to the 

marital trust beneficiaries.  So, potentially, there 

could be an argument from the other beneficiaries that 

she is not spending down what she should be spending in 

the marital trust. 

THE COURT:  Right.  She's in a difficult situation 

because if she spends one trust down, the beneficiaries 

of that trust complain, and if she spends the credit 

shelter trust down, her grandchildren complain.  It's a 

precarious situation for her. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Not necessarily precarious in 

that she's following what the intent of her husband was, 

and I think the background is important. 

There was some difficult relationships between the 

two daughters, one of whom is adopted and the other one 
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is natural.  There was some difficult issues there as to 

what -- what he would desire to be his outcome.  

In the Dorothy and William Raggio Trust, he 

provided the same set of beneficiaries in both trusts, 

that creates an easier situation.  But in this trust, and 

let's bear in mind that Senator Raggio was an attorney, 

was a trustee of several trusts, was the longest serving 

legislator in Nevada history, and was the Chairman of the 

Senate Finance Committee for over a quarter of a century, 

he knew what he was doing and he knew what the 

consequences of what his trust documents said.  He did 

not require and easily could have but he did not put in 

the trust any methodology of ascertainment as to how 

she's to spend down the other two trusts.  

The other thing is if the argument is that she has 

to look at the trust, how so?  What is she to do with it?  

How is she to decide, under their argument, how much is 

she to spend from each trust?  The two trusts are 

substantially different.  One requires a mandatory taking 

of income and invasion of principal to the extent 

necessary for her support, care and maintenance, and then 

she has discretion as to what she can -- she can spend 

income and principal from the other trust to the extent 

the first trust doesn't fully satisfy and comport with 

what her -- 
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THE COURT:  Is that priority in the trust, that 

she first should go to the marital -- get the terms 

right -- that she first go to the marital deduction trust 

for her support, care and maintenance and then go to the 

credit shelter trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No.  That's that what they want 

it to be rewritten to say, and they're asking you to 

rewrite the trust to say just that, and we can't do that. 

THE COURT:  Is there a difference, Mr. Echeverria 

-- and the record doesn't reflect my gesticulations, but 

if there is not a mandatory reciprocal spending, is that 

the same -- now I'm swinging and pointing my fingers in 

the other direction -- is that the same as analyzing the 

trustee's choices for an irreciprocal spend down?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Help me understand that. 

THE COURT:  Sure.  It's clear to me, based upon 

Commissioner Wright and the un -- and the recommendation 

that became an order, that there is not a mandatory 

concurrent spend down of the two trusts. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  There's no direction at all. 

THE COURT:  Right.  But we have an order that says 

there's not a mandatory concurrent spend down. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Say that last one again, please. 

THE COURT:  Sure.  My understanding from 

Commissioner Wright's recommendation which Judge Stiglich 
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signed is that there is not a requirement that the 

marital deduction trust and the credit shelter trust be 

equally spent down. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I think there's a -- there's a 

finding that there was no basis in law or in the language 

of the trust for the conclusion that there should be a 

proportional spend down. 

THE COURT:  Right.  Is that then the same as 

analyzing the trustee's spend down discretion?  One 

indicates, okay, it's not mandatory, but isn't the 

trustee still exposed to explain her discretionary 

choices for why there was a disproportionate spend down?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Under what provision of the trust 

or under what provision of law?  That's what we're having 

trouble with. 

THE COURT:  I'm thinking about it in terms of 

issuing claim preclusion, which is what is before me now.  

Is there a distinction between those two questions?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Not in my mind, because what 

they're raising is a claim of -- and, as I understand 

Judge -- or Commissioner Wright's recommendation is that 

she thought it was confused by the idea that there was a 

breach of fiduciary duty, but first there has to be a 

breach of fiduciary duty in order to set up the scenario 

that is being postulated; in other words, is she mandated 
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to look at other sources?  And the law in Nevada says 

she's not and that -- the law requires that the trustee 

is not mandated to look to other sources of income from 

the beneficiaries.  And that makes sense because what 

other sources of income do we look at?  

They're asking that she has to look at all other 

resources.  In fact, they point to the fact that she gets 

to keep the family house that she and her husband shared.  

What else does she have to look at under their scenario?  

Where do we stop?  Does she have to look at what her 

retirement accounts are?  And then if she does, does she 

have to -- what is the criteria by which she's supposed 

to exercise this fiduciary duty as between the two 

trusts?  There's no criteria for that even articulated in 

the law and so, in essence, what they're trying to do, 

your Honor, is rewrite the terms of the trust. 

THE COURT:  There is one word that seems important 

to me, in the trustee's discretion to invade principal of 

the marital deduction trust, the principal invasion must 

be necessary.  And so understanding that word necessary 

and then measuring the necessary standard against her 

choice seems to me very important, particularly when 

there are such exacerbated relationships between trustee 

and beneficiary.  Embedded in those personality conflicts 

is a risk of making a choice to benefit a trustee to the 
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detriment of the beneficiaries, so it seems to me that 

everyone should be on greater caution. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And we have no -- we have no 

question with them looking at how she's spending the 

money. 

THE COURT:  Well, how can they define the word -- 

how can the court define the word necessary without 

reference to why is it necessary?  Does necessary 

include, oh, she also has beneficial rights to another 

trust, she also has non-trust assets, do those facts 

eliminate the word necessary in her discretionary 

invasion of principal in the marital deduction trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And I submit no, and the reason 

is Nevada has addressed that issue in NRS 163.4175, I 

believe it is, that specifically says -- if you'll excuse 

me -- 

THE COURT:  Please, yes, sir. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  It's NRS 165 -- 163, my 

apologies, 4175, which says, quote:

A trustee is not required to consider 

certain factors with regard to 

distribution of trust assets except as 

otherwise provided in the trust 

instrument. 

And we have no provision. 
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THE COURT:  But that's their argument, is that the 

word necessary is the otherwise proscription. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And that's a circular argument.  

It says if it's necessary under either trust, then they 

have to look at it -- they claim they're entitled to look 

at both trusts to determine what is necessary.  And, to 

me, the statute is clear, it says that she is not to 

consider certain factors with regard to distribution of 

trust assets.  

If the argument is that she has to look at other 

resources, then what other resources are considered?  Do 

we look beyond the credit shelter trust?  Do we say that 

she's not entitled to anything that's necessary because 

she's got other income from somewhere else?  It doesn't 

say "necessary in addition to other resources," it says 

"necessary for her spend -- for her health, maintenance 

and support," for want of a better language.  

And if the test is is what she is spending from 

the marital trust necessary for her health, maintenance 

and support, and that we're fully prepared to litigate, 

that aspect of the marital trust.  What is troublesome 

here is the fact that they want to invade the privacy of 

the other set of beneficiaries of which they're not. 

Now, were they named as a set of beneficiaries 

under the credit shelter trust?  Yes, I think we have an 
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argument, but there's a different set of beneficiaries on 

the credit shelter trust and so -- and that, I believe, 

was the Senator's intent.  He set it up that way.  He set 

it up so that Ms. Righetti and Ms. Chew are the 

beneficiaries and successor trustees of the marital 

trust, but the beneficiaries and the remainder 

beneficiaries of the credit shelter trust are different 

and the successor trustee is different; it's John Sande, 

his law partner.  There's a reason why he had to have 

done that and we can't ignore the Senator's intent, but 

he has clearly, I think, expressed an intent that he 

didn't want the two daughters to take -- to be involved 

in the credit shelter trust which is why he named a 

different trustee as a successor to Mrs. Raggio.  

We still find there is no -- we have still have to 

have a basis in the law for why she must look at the 

other trust or any other assets or -- in order to 

determine what is quote "necessary" for her support.  

What is necessary for her support is what she needs to 

live on in the manner in which she and her husband lived. 

THE COURT:  I understand the argument.  I'm 

struggling with the ability to understand what is 

necessary.  If there's a mountain of gold behind her but 

we don't get to see that mountain, how can we understand 

that her invasion of principal is necessary?  It's 
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necessary only because of something. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Then we would have to look at any 

trust that says the trustee has to determine what is 

necessary for a beneficiary, and then do we require every 

trustee to look at what is, as you say, behind the 

beneficiary's pot of gold?  There is no law that supports 

that proposition that I've been cited to.  

THE COURT:  It seems to me that in this instance 

we're using language that doesn't fit exactly the facts.  

This standard of -- we all learned it as HAMS in law 

school -- housing, education, maintenance and support, is 

really a -- it's desired to be an ascertainable standard 

so that there can be some invasion of principal in a 

qualified trust for estate tax purposes.  It isn't 

designed, the language, to govern competing -- discretion 

among competing beneficial rights.  

I see many, many HAMS provisions that don't 

include the choice of one to the detriment of the other, 

or the choice of the other to the detriment of the one.  

That's why this case is a little more complicated for me 

because if it were just what is necessary for her health, 

education, maintenance and support, it's broad and her 

discretion would likely be exercised without attack.  But 

here there's -- there's an influence, her discretion 

has -- her cause, discretion, has an effect between one 
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set of beneficiaries and another set of beneficiaries and 

so when we talk about law elsewhere and law governing 

this particular fact pattern, to me, seems an exception 

rather than the rule. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And therefore we need to look at 

the settlor's intent and his knowledge and background of 

the family situation. 

I think what is concerning everybody, and 

particularly the two daughters, is that it seems unfair.  

That's what seems to be driving -- 

THE COURT:  I appreciate your calling that out 

because that's really the big elephant in the room is 

that they're afraid she's just spending their money to 

preserve her grandchild's money.  We can wrap it up in 

legal language but that's their concern. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And the issue is, did he express 

that intent in the trust?  His intent, I think we'll 

clearly be able to prove, was to do just that. 

THE COURT:  When you say "prove," are you talking 

about proof through collateral evidence of intent or from 

the four corners of the instrument itself?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  It depends on where we go.  If 

we're going to challenge four corners of the instrument, 

which does not require her under any circumstance to look 

at other assets and then what, determine at what 
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percentage she's to spend them down?  What is the 

proportionality?  The whole premise of the argument that 

she has to look at other resources is to then balance 

what she's taking from this resource.  How do we do that?  

There's no -- there's no direction in the trust to say, 

okay, now you've looked at the pot of gold that didn't 

come from anywhere else, but what is she then to 

determine and what is any trustee to determine how much 

of that pot of gold do I take in depravation -- or in 

detriment to the amount for which I'm supposed to take my 

health, education, maintenance and support?  

There is no -- there's no standard and no argument 

by these defendants, okay, so she's ordered to look the 

other trust or other assets or her IRA account.  If she's 

ordered do that, what she does she then do?  What is the 

direction as to how she's supposed to look at the other 

trust and make a determination?  

THE COURT:  It's a fair question because it 

appears to be unresolved in its answer from the trust 

documents itself. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And therefore we can't impose 

that requirement in the trust because we're rewriting the 

trust when we do that. 

THE COURT:  But if she were to have, 

hypothetically, five-and-a-half million dollars between 
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credit shelter trust and non-trust resources, and access 

to that money, how does she then say the $200,000 is 

necessary from the marital deduction trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Because that is supported by how 

she and her husband spent their time and money and was 

necessary -- because the necessary part pertains to what 

the standard of living was before.  What may be necessary 

for me may not be necessary for someone else, so the 

necessary part focuses on what are the distributions 

taken and are those distributions necessary to -- for 

your health, maintenance and support.  

To require someone to look at other assets is -- 

because I want to take it to the extreme because they're 

asking that she has to look at all assets -- what other 

assets is she supposed to look at in addition to the 

credit shelter trust?  Is she only limited to looking 

what the credit shelter trust is?  Or let's suppose she's 

an heiress to a gold mine in Australia, is she supposed 

to say, well, despite what my husband said when I took 

care of him for all these years when the girls were 

fighting with him, refusing to adhere to his wishes, am I 

supposed to ignore what he wanted out of his estate and 

just take my distributions from my gold mine in Australia 

for my health, education and maintenance?  

THE COURT:  Well, did he want his -- from the four 
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corners itself, did he want or contemplate that his 

daughters would be beneficiaries of the marital deduction 

trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Well, that's an interesting 

question.  Let's suppose he died in 2010, there would 

have been nothing in the marital trust because there 

was -- there was no estate tax at that time.  The purpose 

of the marital trust was to put into the marital trust 

money that was under the exemption.  So if he had died in 

2010, would somebody be allowed to make these same 

arguments, that you should have funded something in the 

marital trust because he wanted to take care of his 

daughters and it was fair?  

Fairness isn't the issue here.  The issue is what 

is the intent of the Senator, and to what extent are the 

remainder beneficiaries of the marital trust arguing that 

the trust should be rewritten when we're all sitting here 

speculating as to what is supposed to be done, to what 

extent does she look at other assets. 

So this was a pretty brilliant man.  He knew what 

he was doing.  He amended the Dorothy credit shelter 

trust to add his wife as a third beneficiary of the 

residual.  He -- he knew that in 2010, as I believe 

everybody did -- well, everybody is a broad term, but 

most people knew, at least in this field, that there 
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would be no estate tax and therefore no necessity to fund 

the marital trust.  So if he died in 2010, where would we 

be?  Would we be arguing that he had an intent despite 

what the tax code was to leave money to his daughters?

What his intent was is to put the marital trust 

exemption -- or the exempt assets into the marital trust 

and the non-exempt assets into the other trust.  He did 

not declare which one she had to look to first but he did 

declare that she had to take the mandatory income out of 

the marital trust and then apply whatever was necessary 

for her support, care and maintenance. 

One could view that trust as then saying if that 

wasn't enough in the marital trust and it was depleted 

down, now you have that -- now you have to apply that in 

the credit shelter trust and determine whether or not 

expenditures from that trust are necessary for your care, 

maintenance and support. 

If the issue is -- and it's the elephant in the 

room and so I'm raising it -- if the issue is what he did 

seems to be unfair, that's not how we base an 

interpretation of the trust.  We have to base the 

interpretation of the trust is that the Senator knew what 

he was doing, did not mandate any kind of proportional 

spend down, did not mandate whether or not the trustee 

had to look to other assets to determine what was to be 

PA-0706



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

**  SUNSHINE LITIGATION  **

22

drawn from the marital trust, and to give full force and 

effect to his intent we cannot rewrite the contract -- or 

the trust agreement. 

THE COURT:  So while there may not be a standard 

in law what is fair, there is a standard of fiduciary 

duty in which the trustee owes loyalty to beneficiaries 

and is precluded from self-dealing, which is a fancy way 

of saying she be better be fair. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And fair to both sets of 

different beneficiaries?  And in what respect?  There's 

no question and we've not argued that she does not owe 

fiduciary duties to the beneficiaries of the marital 

trust.  There is no issue that we argue that she does not 

owe fiduciary duties to the other set of beneficiaries, a 

different set of beneficiaries.  That was what the 

Senator created, that's what he did. 

To the extent that they are now trying to say that 

her fiduciary duties to these other beneficiaries have to 

be looked at in relation to what she owes me, and we have 

no quarrel with them looking at the amount of money, the 

decisions she's making, the basis for those decisions on 

the marital trust.  But when we get into mandating that 

she has to provide detailed information invading the 

privacy of those remainder beneficiaries of the credit 

shelter trust, that's a different issue.  And in order to 

PA-0707



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

**  SUNSHINE LITIGATION  **

23

do that, I think we have to have some legal basis to do 

so and some indication in the trust that she is required 

to do so. 

THE COURT:  How would you propose that she defend 

what is necessary if there can be no inquiry or 

examination into her rights under the credit shelter 

bypass trust and her non-trust resources, how do we 

measure what is necessary?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Exactly in the way they've asked 

for discovery; and that is, how did you and your husband 

spend money before, to what extent did you spend it, what 

are your traveling expenses?  We produced somewhere in 

excess of 2,000 pages of information going back some 10 

years of their relation -- well, not 10 years of the 

relationship but 10 years from the day we produced them, 

I think -- giving bank accounts, how they spent their 

money, how they traveled, what maintenance they did on 

the house, how frequently did they buy cars.  That, to 

me, is how you test what is necessary for her health, 

maintenance and support is by looking at what -- what the 

Senator and she spent on themselves versus what she is 

now drawing for those same kind of lifestyles from the 

marital trust.  

We're prepared to present them that information 

and have presented that information and that's fair game.  
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The issue is the burden on them is to establish that what 

she says she needs to spend her money on is not necessary 

for her health, maintenance and support as her lifestyle 

was when she was married to her husband. 

THE COURT:  So it is your position that the 

lifestyle created during marriage and enjoyed during 

marriage can be fully funded by her principal incurring 

rights into the marital deduction trust without any 

reference to her discretionary principal and income 

rights to the credit shelter bypass trust?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Absent some direction in the 

trust itself and absent some legal principle, yes. 

THE COURT:  So let me just make sure I understand 

my own question. 

If the lifestyle requires $300,000 a year, she can 

draw down discretionary principal of the marital 

deduction trust $300,000 a year?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes, unless there is something in 

the -- in the trust agreement that mandates a different 

position.  And if she requires $300,000 a year and is not 

drawing that down, then -- then she's not exceeding her 

necessary expenses. 

THE COURT:  Not drawing it down from what source?  

MS. REID:  From the marital trust.  Let's 

suppose -- right now she's drawing down, and has been 
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since July 2014, roughly $20,000 a month.  I believe that 

in looking at the records the expenditures that she and 

her husband made in their lifestyle prior to that 

exceeded that amount. 

THE COURT:  So your argument then includes a 

priority between trusts even though -- even though the 

Commissioner ruled there's no proportionate spend down -- 

from that ruling that there's no proportionate spend down 

required, your position implies that there's a priority 

to spend down first from the marital deduction trust 

because it alone can fund her lifestyle.  And if that's 

the case, then why aren't there discretionary spend down 

rights within the credit shelter trust?  Is that just 

nugatory and superfluous?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No.  The necessary part is to 

ascertain whether or not the expenditure that is drawn is 

necessary for the health, maintenance and support.  The 

discretion is to determine what is that amount.  If there 

was no -- the law of the case is there's no law that 

requires a proportional spend down.  That being so, why 

do we even look at what the trust -- 

THE COURT:  Isn't there's a difference between a 

mandatory spend down and a discretionary spend down 

according to fiduciary discretion?  I see them as 

different.  One requires an equal spend down and one 
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makes the discretionary choice to spend down available 

for scrutiny.  

I don't believe the -- I don't believe, from what 

I've read so far, that the absence of a mandatory spend 

down provision immunizes the trustee from all inquiry 

into how she discretionarily spends down. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Isn't the first inquiry whether 

she's abusing her discretion with respect to the marital 

trust before we get into the privacy rights of the 

remainder beneficiaries of the other trust?  

THE COURT:  I don't know the answer to that 

question at the moment. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Well, that's kind of at the 

bottom here.  We are attempting, under the position of 

the remainder beneficiaries to the marital trust, to 

rewrite this trust, in all candor.  

THE COURT:  I'm trying to understand --  I don't 

want to rewrite it.  I want to understand why what is 

written -- why what is written was written.  Why does she 

have discretionary rights into the credit shelter trust 

if the marital deduction trust can always support her 

needs, her necessary health, education and maintenance?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  In the event that it couldn't.  

For example, if he had died in 2010, there would have 

been nothing in the marital trust, and so therefore it 
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goes to is she exercising her discretion from the credit 

shelter trust. 

THE COURT:  Right.  But if he had died in 2017, it 

would be dramatically -- not dramatically -- 

incrementally more than it was in 2014, that's just kind 

of the vagaries of life. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Exactly, and that's their 

problem.  The beneficiaries here are complaining that he 

didn't put enough to them, that's what the bottom line 

is, he didn't leave us enough so that we could have a 

residual what I call devisement of his estate. 

THE COURT:  Is their argument that he didn't leave 

us enough or what he left us should be depleted with some 

larger measurable context?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And what is that measurable 

context?  That is not defined in the law or any of their 

papers. 

THE COURT:  I agree with that, but it seems to be 

a little uncertain.  I know that she has the discretion 

to draw down credit shelter funds, but it appears that 

her choices make that discretion uncertain because she's 

not -- she's not exercising it.  She's just -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Well, but that implies that she 

has to have an equal discretion as to both trusts and 

that's not stated.  That's the problem here.  That's a 
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circular argument.  In other words, they're arguing that 

she has to do that and the reason she has to do that is 

she has to do that, but the trust doesn't say it.  The 

trust is created so that she looks at the marital trust 

first. 

THE COURT:  Did you say "first"?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I believe so.  She has the 

discretion to look at that trust, she has duties to the 

remainder beneficiaries, she has discretion to look at 

that trust.  

Now, if that trust does not have enough money, 

then she has -- she's still under the restriction that 

she can only exercise discretion as to the credit shelter 

trust and her expenditures for her health, maintenance 

and support. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Echeverria, we don't know each 

other, while I hope that you'll forgive my constant 

questions, when I interact a lot with counsel, it's 

because I'm struggling to understand, and maybe a better 

judge would just sit here and dispassionately listen but 

it's -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I prefer these kinds of 

arguments, your Honor, so that we understand what are the 

concerns. 

THE COURT:  So let me try again then.  Let's say 
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that the standard of living created during Senator 

Raggio's life cost $300,000 a year. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  And let's say that outside of the 

child beneficiaries' knowledge Ms. Raggio is drawing 

$300,000 a year from the credit shelter trust, does that 

make a distribution of the marital deduction trust 

$300,000 necessary?  

I'm struggling, that word necessary really 

confounds me. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Okay.  I believe the word 

necessary goes to whether the expenditures are necessary, 

not whether she has to look at a particular asset as 

being necessary, and I think that's a distinction.  What 

is necessary for her health, maintenance and support is 

what the issue is.  

Is the fact that she spends -- I'm not saying 

these are facts but assuming -- assuming she spends 

$50,000 for a car and they only bought $20,000 worth of 

cars, the issue is, is it necessary for her to buy a 

$50,000 car or $100,000 car?  The test is, is the -- is 

the money spent for her health, maintenance and support 

necessary for her health, maintenance and support?  

The broader interpretation is that one has to look 

at whether or not she has to draw anything as necessary.  
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And that requires an analysis, I suppose, of looking at 

whether or not she's got a gold mine in Texas or 

Australia or somewhere.  And that, I don't think, is read 

in any law principal or in this trust itself. 

The concept that one has to look at what is 

necessary and using that broad definition, that's the 

hang-up, then all trustees would have to look at what 

other resources are available to a trustee to determine 

whether or not any expenditure is necessary, not whether 

the expenditure is necessary, and I think that's the 

distinction. 

There is nothing in the law that requires a 

determination that one first must determine whether or 

not one is entitled to draw anything based on other 

assets or other income.  The trust is clear.  The Senator 

wanted and set up two trusts; one, the remainder goes to 

her grandsons -- or to the remainder beneficiaries, his 

daughters and then in their death, their grandsons, and 

he took care of them in his trust.  He gave to 

grandchildren on that side of the family, I think it was 

a total of $300,000, $50,000 each.  And so the necessary 

concept is if necessary is used to define whether or not 

any expenditure has to be made, then we have to look at 

other resources, and the law in Nevada specifically says 

you don't do that.  
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The necessary part is whether the $50,000 check 

for a Lexus was necessary, whether a gardener that they 

had to maintain their house was necessary, whether the 

plumbers had to be called was necessary.  That's, to me, 

where the necessary fits in, not whether or not any money 

is necessary but is what was drawn necessary for that 

purpose of health, maintenance and support. 

THE COURT:  This has been very helpful, well done, 

I look forward to also being helped by the opposing side, 

but before you retire your comments I do have to bring -- 

bring them to the context of this hearing, which is an 

objection.  And under our local rules, we don't provide 

de novo review, instead, we must persuade the court that 

Commissioner Wright was clearly erroneous in her 

conclusion. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I think this one is a little 

different because she said in her ruling, "I recognize 

the above analysis is less than clear or its face," or 

something like that. 

THE COURT:  She said something like that. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  And so in all respect, your 

Honor, I think she punted it up to you to make the 

decision.  She raises the issue that the allegations of a 

breach of fiduciary duty changed the landscape.  That I 

disagree with.  The allegations of the breach of 
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fiduciary duty, we say clearly that they are entitled to 

explore whether she's breached any fiduciary duty to them 

as the beneficiary, but to then say that because she owes 

fiduciary duties to someone else that those fiduciary 

duties merge, and that's where we have -- we have an 

issue.  

I don't think you can say -- let's say she's a 

trustee of another trust in which -- unrelated to this in 

which she's the trustee of another trust in which she's 

allowed to take down that which is necessary for her 

health, care and maintenance, can we look at that trust 

to see if she's breaching her fiduciary duties?  I don't 

think so.  I think fiduciary duties are between the 

trustee and the current beneficiary and the remainder 

beneficiaries, and has she breached any fiduciary duties 

to any of these beneficiaries?  And the issue as to 

whether or not she's breached fiduciary duties to those 

beneficiaries is centered, I believe, on the issue of 

whether or not the precise expenditure was, in fact, 

necessary for her health, maintenance and support. 

Otherwise, your Honor, and I think the reason we 

brought the motion for partial summary judgment is 

because of Judge -- or Commissioner Wright's and Judge 

Stiglich's approval and denial of the initial petition 

that required an accounting.  They asked for an 
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accounting also of the credit shelter trust and she 

denied that.  In essence, they're trying to get an 

accounting of the credit shelter trust. 

THE COURT:  But wasn't that accounting of the 

allocation and funding decision as opposed to the 

trustee's year-over-year discretion?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No, your Honor.  Initially they 

said it was an allocation but the petition and the 

argument itself asked for -- let me get that language. 

THE COURT:  You're looking at your reply where you 

set them side by side?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  They asked for an accounting.  

They said they were entitled to an accounting going 

forward; she ruled they're not.  They asked that there be 

a comparable spend down in some form, which has not yet 

been articulated, and she said no, there's nothing in the 

trust or the law that requires either an accounting of 

the credit shelter trust of which they are not 

beneficiaries, remainder beneficiaries, or even remote 

beneficiaries.  So the ruling was they're not entitled to 

an accounting of that trust and they're not entitled to a 

proportional spend down under the law or the trust 

document.  
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And, given that, your Honor, we have no quarrel 

with them looking at what is she spending the money on 

out of the marital trust, are those expenditures 

necessary for her support?  And in that we look at each 

expenditure, not whether or not she has to look at other 

sources of income. 

THE COURT:  I should lean forward, because I lean 

back I don't see her and sometimes don't remember that 

she's writing furiously as I interrupt and as we go speak 

quickly, so let's just pause for a moment and then I will 

remember to be slower in my cadence as I hear from the 

other side of the courtroom.  

Thank you, sir. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Any other questions?  

THE COURT:  No. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Thank you, your Honor. 

MR. MOWRY:  Good morning, your Honor.  Bart Mowry 

representing Leslie Raggio Righetti.  She's the 

biological child.  And she would like to be here, your 

Honor.  Unfortunately, when we set this hearing date, I 

didn't check with her.  And she's a teacher at Manogue, a 

language teacher, and she's leading 18 students on a 

mission to build a school in Nicaragua with buildOn, so 

she's the head person on that and cannot change that.  

I'd like to address a few of the points that 
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Mr. Echeverria made because we obviously have a different 

take on the interpretation of this trust agreement.  

First of all, he seems to focus on the term 

necessary.  We believe necessary means you have to look 

to her other resources.  What was not stated in the 

discussion between you and Mr. Echeverria was another 

term, what is proper?  Proper for her support, care and 

maintenance, the HAMS standard that you referenced 

earlier.  That adjective there means whether the 

expenditure was proper.  Necessary is what are her other 

resources?  

And I think NRS 163.4175 is quite clear, except as 

otherwise provided in the trust instrument you don't take 

into account other resources.  He could very well have 

written in the document, she can take discretionary 

principal for health, support and maintenance, period.  

Necessary isn't there, proper isn't there, so there, I 

don't believe, you would have to take into account her 

other resources. 

THE COURT:  But aren't you bounded somewhat by 

the -- by the Commissioner's and then Judge Stiglich's 

application of an order that there need not be 

proportionate spend down, doesn't that bind you in some 

way?  

MR. MOWRY:  First of all, we were not present in 
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that proceeding.  I recognize that it is an interim 

proceeding and I recognize Mr. Echeverria's contention 

that it's the law of the case but, in my opinion, there 

could not be a proportionate spend down of these two 

trusts.  Why do I say that?  Because there's a mandatory 

distribution from the marital trust of net income.  That 

alone means it can't be proportionate.  It's 

discretionary principal from the marital deduction trust 

for her proper health, support and maintenance and it's 

discretionary income and principal from the credit 

shelter trust. 

THE COURT:  But when we look at an order, we 

understand it by analyzing the predicate arguments and 

didn't Ms. Chew argue something slightly different?  Did 

she make the distinction between income as a mandatory 

portion of the marital deduction trust?  

I'm confusing myself a little bit. 

When she urged the court for a proportionate spend 

down, did she also include your argument that there 

was -- there could not be proportionate spend down of the 

income or did she just argue generally that the 

proportionate be proportionate?  

MR. MOWRY:  I'm unable to answer that, your Honor, 

because I was not present at any of those proceedings.  

We did not make an appearance at those proceedings on 
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behalf of Leslie Righetti. 

THE COURT:  Her attorney is here, so I'm sure -- 

MR. MOWRY:  May I -- let me make another point 

here that I think is a fair one -- several to make but 

one is that if we had an independent trustee, if you had 

a retail trust company or a bank with trust company 

powers, there is no way that that trustee is going to be 

exercising discretion in the way in which Mrs. Raggio is 

exercising discretion for her own benefit.  

The credit -- you have only seen one of the 

accountings.  Mr. Echeverria mentioned that she has been 

drawing down $20,000 a month from the time these trusts 

got funded solely from the marital deduction trust.  Now, 

it was the smallest trust when it was funded -- and I 

believe you have that diagram there; if you don't, I have 

an extra copy of one I had attached to our papers -- 

delineating what Mrs. Raggio received free of trust, 

which was $1.8 million and there were liquid assets in 

that, including -- and as well as the residence.  There 

was $2.5 million put in the marital deduction trust and 

there was 3.9 in the credit shelter trust.  

Now, I do know one of Mr. Rosenauer's arguments 

had been at the prior proceeding that all of the 

appreciation, the run-up in the market from the date of 

Bill Raggio's death when those securities were valued for 
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purposes of the estate tax return, all of the 

appreciation inured to the benefit of the credit shelter 

trust, and that -- that Judge Stiglich and Commissioner 

Wright indicated that that was proper.  It was proper.  

It was because of the way that the marital deduction 

formula clause was written. 

Now, I would tell you that I spoke with the 

draftsman of this trust, John Sande -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Wait.  I'm going to object.  

Mr. Sande didn't draft this trust. 

MR. MOWRY:  Actually, he said that he did.  At the 

time, if it wasn't him it might have been his secretary, 

Nancy Hudson, but he didn't even know what Bill Raggio's 

estate was worth or what the composition of the assets 

were, and so it's hard -- as an estate planner it's hard 

for me, how could you possibly do that.  But we're stuck 

with the four corners of the document.  I don't believe 

it's ambiguous.  I think that Mr. Echeverria is trying to 

rewrite it to say that you spend down the marital 

deduction trust first, and I -- that is -- he's saying 

we're trying to rewrite it.  We're trying to make the 

trustee act in a fair and impartial manner, and to uphold 

the fiduciary duties that she owes to all of the 

remainder beneficiaries.  

I don't care if there's two different trusts.  
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When she -- she is favoring her grandchildren over Bill 

Raggio's daughters because -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I'm sorry, your Honor -- 

MR. MOWRY:  -- they're drawing it down from 

there -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Where is the facts to these 

arguments?  

MR. MOWRY:  Well, if we -- 

THE COURT:  Hold on.  I'm going to let him argue.  

He was kind enough to let you argue, too.  I understand 

you'll disagree, but I would like his argument because I 

think he's responding to the fairness theme. 

MR. MOWRY:  Yes, and a duty of impartiality.  She 

is -- she is favoring herself with respect to the 

distributions from the marital deduction trust and that 

disfavors the remainder beneficiaries.  Mr. Echeverria is 

correct, there is -- are some hard feelings between the 

daughters and Mrs. Raggio and it's my opinion that she's 

doing nothing more than draining this marital deduction 

trust. 

THE COURT:  Has she been deposed yet or is it too 

early in the litigation?  

MR. MOWRY:  I believe it's too early yet, your 

Honor, because we've had these preliminary skirmishes -- 

THE COURT:  You've suggested persuasively, at 
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least intuitively it's pervasive, that if there were a 

neutral trustee there would likely be a different 

distribution outcome, but Senator Raggio didn't pick a 

neutral third party fiduciary company, he picked his 

wife; how do I contextualize that choice?  

MR. MOWRY:  Because the fiduciary duties that a 

trustee owes are no different whether it's a surviving 

spouse or Well Fargo Bank.  It's the same standard.  And 

I believe the law does support -- there's -- there has to 

be more scrutiny in a situation like this, and I would 

direct the court to the Restatement (Third), Comment 50, 

I believe it's Example E. 

MR. SCHAERER:  It's Section 50 at Comment E. 

MR. MOWRY:  Comment E, which is our facts, and the 

Restatement makes that very point.  Greater scrutiny is 

required here because we don't have an independent 

trustee. 

Now, I want -- you have only seen one of the 

accountings.  We have an agreement in place preserving 

our objections, but I will tell you that as of 

December 31, 2017 -- now, recall, the marital trust 

started with $2.5 million, it has now been drained to 

where there's 1.6 million left, and I am -- I will submit 

that if we get into and are able to see what payments, 

distributions Mrs. Raggio has made to herself from the 
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credit shelter trust, that trust is now well north of 

$5 million because of the appreciation in the run-up in 

the market, starting at 3.9, there was a big jump in the 

market during the 15 months intervening until they funded 

it, and I believe that's what Mr. Rosenauer was trying to 

get at at the time.  

Oh.  The other thing that is also causing the 

drain down is she has paying attorneys approximately 

somewhere between 40- and $50,000 per year from the 

assets of the marital deduction trust, so we've seen it 

depleted and it will not last her life expectancy.  I 

don't know if the court got that far in -- with all the 

papers that have been filed.  

I have never had a trustee fight this hard.  My 

law firm was formed in 1972 and it had never had a Rule 

11 motion brought against it until this case.  And it was 

difficult for me to go into a shareholders' meeting, I 

had to tell my partners that we were facing our first 

Rule 11 motion.  That was defeated, and rightly so.  And 

if I seem a little upset about it, I am, so I apologize 

to the court. 

If you want to hear on the issue in the claim 

preclusion, my law partner Enrique Schaerer, actually had 

researched and wrote most of that, I just slightly edited 

it, so if the court wants to hear it, I would ask that he 
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address the court on that. 

THE COURT:  Would you add anything other than what 

he has written in the moving papers, which appear to be 

thorough upon the court's reading?  

MR. SCHAERER:  Your Honor, I also intend to speak 

to the standard.  With respect to issuing the claim 

preclusion, I've heard no discussion or analysis despite 

their request for de novo review, I heard from 

Mr. Echeverria no argument on those issues.  So I would 

not add anything other than what I said in the papers, 

which I think is well briefed and I hope it's helpful to 

the court, but I do not think that we have not had very 

much discussion in terms of what it means to have a clear 

error review.  Perhaps the court feels very comfortable 

with that review process given that the court does it 

quite often, but I would be happy to speak to that.

And one thing I did want to note is there's been a 

discussion where the touchstone is always settlor intent, 

and as the court is well aware, the Nevada Supreme Court 

said Klabacka vs. Nelson that first and foremost the 

court looks to the language of the trust to determine 

what the intent is.  And if you look at that language, 

Mr. Mowry is quite correct that it says "necessary," 

which is the first word of limitation, in my opinion, 

your Honor.  The second thing it says, it says "proper," 
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and then it says, "support, care and maintenance," and 

those words are also limiting.  They're different from 

the word, for instance, for the comfort of the 

beneficiaries.  

And so I would submit there are actually three 

levels of limitation and that discretionary distribution 

standard is the same in the marital deduction trust and 

it's the same in the credit shelter trust with respect to 

principal, and so I think it's very important for the 

court not to lose sight of that.  

THE COURT:  But if there's not a requirement in 

the trust for a proportionate spend down, what standard 

does exist for the respective spending?  

MR. SCHAERER:  So the standard, your Honor -- and 

I think it would be actually helpful for to court if I 

read it -- is you need to look at both trusts.  So one of 

the things I think is quite interesting, and I want to 

make sure this is not lost on the court and that I 

emphasize it, is Mr. Echeverria would have the court read 

the word necessary and proper out of the both trusts, so 

that's number one.  

Number two, he would have the court read into the 

trust a requirement, he said it himself, that the trustee 

look first to the marital deduction trust for 

discretionary distributions.  Those words do not appear 
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in either trust.  And if you look at the trust, and I've 

actually -- I want to make sure that we don't get too far 

afield of the actual language of the trust -- I believe 

it's section 5.1 with respect to the marital deduction 

trust, and that's in the trust agreement which is 

actually the first exhibit to the motion for partial 

summary judgment, and the marital deduction trust is 

discussed at Article 5, section 5.1, and that includes 

the standard, and the credit shelter trust is discussed 

at Article 6, Section 6.1.  

And if you look at that document, your Honor, 

you'll see that the discretionary distribution standard 

is exactly the same for both and there is no language 

that requires a trustee to look at one trust before she 

looks of the other trust. 

THE COURT:  I understand that. 

MR. SCHAERER:  So what do we have?  What we have 

is we have governing principles of law that apply.  Now, 

Nevada has codified many of those principles but one 

principle that is well established -- that has not been 

explicitly codified but is well established and is quoted 

in the briefs but has not been responded to by the other 

side, and I think it's because it powerful, is the 

language of the Third Restatement, Section 50, comment E, 

and that says:  
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Where a beneficiary is entitled to 

payments from another trust created by 

the same settlor -- 

The situation we have here.  

-- each a non-marital trust like the 

credit shelter trust -- 

THE COURT:  Slow down.  Slow down, please. 

MR. SCHAERER:  I'm sorry. 

-- and the marital deduction trust for 

a surviving spouse, or as part of a 

coordinated estate planning with another, 

such as the settlor's spouse, required 

distributions from the other trust and 

the purpose of those both trusts are to 

be taken into account by the trustee in 

deciding whether, in what amounts and 

from which trust discretionary payments 

are to be made. 

THE COURT:  So I've I read that page, it's in your 

brief.  It's brought together -- it's excerpted just as 

you've described, but you're asking me today to honor the 

Commissioner's recommendation, must I not also look at 

the Commissioner's prior recommendation?  

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes, you must, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  How do I take what the Commissioner 
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previously recommended, subsequently adopted by order, 

within the context of Comment E?  Because you're urging 

upon the court Comment E which is not part of the 

Commissioner's first recommended order. 

MR. SCHEARER:  Yes.  Well, the first recommended 

order, your Honor, only says that the spend down must not 

be proportional, and it doesn't make any reference to net 

income versus principal, it just speaks generally.  

That's -- the only context we have is a general context 

that the spend down need not be proportional, that's all 

that she decided.  

And, in fact, Mr. Echeverria, if you read the 

hearing transcript from the June 3rd, 2014, hearing 

before the Probate Commissioner, which is Exhibit 6 to 

the Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, Mr. Echeverria 

actually characterizes the argument that was before the 

judge -- before the Probate Commissioner.  He says 

that's -- so he says:  

What that shows is inevitably to 

maximize the growth of the credit shelter 

trust because there's no mandated spend 

down of income, but there is in the 

marital trust.  That's contrary to the 

argument of Ms. Chew -- 

THE COURT:  You have to show down.  When you read, 
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you quicken your pace a lot. 

MR. SCHAERER:  I'll slow down.  I'm sorry.  I 

apologize to the reporter. 

So he says -- and, your Honor, this is page he 47, 

lines 9 through 14 of the transcript -- what 

Mr. Echeverria says is he says:  

His point was contrary to the argument 

Ms. Chew made here, that we should have 

not a proportionate spend down and it's 

got to be equal.  So what they were 

contemplating was a joint reading where 

distributions would be equal and 

proportional.  We used the word strict.  

I don't think you need to get hung up on 

that word.  When you say "proportional" 

you're thinking proportionate, relative 

that there's some proportion, but 

whenever you have a disproportion or a 

gross disproportion, that is inevitably 

going to raise a separate legal issue of 

a breach of fiduciary duty or breach of 

trust, and that is the reason why issue 

and claim preclusion fail and perhaps one 

the reasons why we're not actually 

getting into the meat of -- to the meat 
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of it in terms of if you look at the 

actual factors, those have not been 

established and I think the brief lays 

that out very well.  

Now, another thing that Mr. Echeverria said, and 

this is with respect to prospective request for 

accountings from both trusts, Mr. Echeverria said on page 

47, lines 15 through 20:  

There was no provision in the trust 

imposing any duty on the trustee to spend 

the two trusts proportionally as they 

seek here, and that being the case 

there's no basis for a dual accounting to 

a person that is not even an interested 

party in the credit shelter trust.  

And he also said on page 47 at lines 21 and 23:  

Here's a plain attempt to reform the 

trust agreement.  It's asking this court 

to write into this trust a proportional 

spend down provision. 

Now, we have admitted in our briefing here with 

respect to the Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and, 

remember, Leslie Raggio Righetti never made this 

argument.  We forthrightly admit that because net income 

is mandatory under the marital deduction trust, which was 
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necessary actually for it to qualify as a QTIP trust, 

that they cannot be proportional, they cannot be equal.  

And if you read this transcript, your Honor, you'll see 

the word identical time and time again throughout the 

discussion, so that was the argument before Judge Wright 

and that is the only basis she had for making a very 

generic point about no proportional spend down.  

And if you actually read what she said, she said 

that she had doubts about whether Ms. Righetti would 

bring different arguments or different authority, both of 

which we think we have here, but she didn't feel like the 

issue had been fully considered, and she didn't feel like 

she had enough information to make a final conclusive 

decision, which i would submit to the court is the reason 

why she made the order, the recommendation, as one that 

was without prejudice.  And that was what was confirmed 

by Judge Stiglich, was an order without prejudice.  That 

very clearly does not qualify for preclusive effect. 

THE COURT:  What is the standard of review for me 

today?  

MR. SCHEARER:  Yes.  So the standard of review 

today is clear error.  And I searched, your Honor, to see 

if I could find any basis for de novo review and I at 

least was unsuccessful in locating a case in which a 

court reviewed a probate commissioner's recommendation 
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under a de novo standard.  There has been no 

identification of a matter of law that is erroneous in 

the Commissioner's recommendation, so the review standard 

would be clear error, which is a very high standard of 

review, it's very high burden for the other side to 

overcome. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Echeverria suggests that the 

Commissioner essentially punted the issue to the District 

Court --

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  -- when she wrote -- 

MR. SCHAERER:  You're looking at the bottom of 

page two, lines 23 through 25?  

THE COURT:  Yes, sir, I am, talking about the 

analysis is admittedly not clear. 

MR. SCHAERER:  She says "not crystal clear." 

THE COURT:  "Not crystal clear."

MR. SCHEARER:  And the pleadings do demonstrate 

the very fine distinction.  So I think that the important 

thing is and this is the issue, I think, in this debate 

that we have here today, the colloquy that you had with 

Mr. Echeverria of the other side seems to want to isolate 

words and not view them in context, and the court rightly 

suggested that you need to look when you look at the 

trust at the language of the trusts and you pointed out 

PA-0735



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

**  SUNSHINE LITIGATION  **

51

necessary, you pointed out proper, support, care and 

maintenance is also a limitation, but also the structure 

of the trusts and how they were part of a coordinated 

estate planning effort in which Senator Raggio 

contemplated that his biological daughter and his adopted 

daughter would have a remainder beneficiary interest in 

the marital deduction trust.  And so I think that's very 

important.  

So looking at the Commissioner's recommendation 

your Honor, don't isolate that term.  Go up to the top on 

page two and I would actually begin reading at line 8, I 

actually think this whole paragraph is useful. 

THE COURT:  Well, don't read it out loud, I don't 

need to reporter to write.  Let me just look at it real 

quick. 

MR. SCHAERER:  Sure, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I've read it. 

MR. SCHAERER:  So what I'd like to emphasize in 

that paragraph, your Honor, is that she -- she does 

qualify what she's discussing as she says, she ruled on 

matters of spending limits.  And, remember, there was a 

request, as I read the transcript and as I read the prior 

recommendation from the Commissioner, for prospective 

relief to insure that in the future all payments, all 

distributions would be proportional, she denied that --
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THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. SCHAERER:  -- but retrospectively with respect 

to breaches of fiduciary duties is entirely different 

claim and issue. 

THE COURT:  But if she denied prospective 

accountings or proportionality, what is the effect of 

that upon me today?  Because -- 

MR. SCHAERER:  I think she told you right here, 

your Honor, she said that the questions were very 

different.  So if you look at line 13, it's about there, 

she says that what's now at issue is -- 

THE COURT:  The focus on fiduciary duties. 

MR. SCHAERER:  Focusing on fiduciary duties, and 

she said before it was a comparable spend down.  The 

language she actually used in her recommendation was 

proportional spend down and she's saying that's different 

from the present question, so she's telling you that what 

she had in mind at the time was not what is at issue in 

the 2015 matters.  

But even, you know, her secret undisclosed intent 

is informative but we think we are bound by her actually 

said her order, her recommendation, and all she said in 

her recommendation is no proportional spend down.  But 

we're discussing the extent of the disproportionality can 

always -- I mean, that gives rise to the possibility of 
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serious breaches of trust, and the only way to determine 

that, your Honor, is for discovery with respect to the 

credit shelter trust as part of a coordinated estate 

planning effort.  

And I have said all along, and when I reviewed the 

motion for partial summary judgment with my law partners 

Mr. Mowry and Mr. Rosenauer my co-counsel, I said this, 

to me, looks like a motion for protective order in 

disguise.  And I think there's a reference in the reply 

in support of our motion to compel which suggests that 

basically -- they basically admitted this in their 

opposition to the motion to compel, but they are seeking 

to shut down discovery on that issue but the problem is 

they have haven't met, even if you were to look at the 

merits, which I submit you should not do, but even if you 

were to use a de novo review standard to look at the 

merits, they have not met the elements of either claim or 

issue preclusion, and so they're incapable of meeting 

that standard and shutting down discovery on that basis.

So the road map, your Honor, I would have for the 

court is that clear error review applies, and I never did 

actually get around to reading you what that standard is. 

THE COURT:  Just cite it to me, please. 

MR. SCHEARER:  Yes.  And I believe -- so this is 

in the context, your Honor, this is Nevada Supreme Court 
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case, Russell v. Thompson, the PIN citation is 96 Nevada 

830, and it's discussed in a footnote 2 which is a 

reference to the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 53 

(e)(2), which reads:

In an action to be tried without a 

jury, the court shall accept the master's 

findings of facts unless clearly 

erroneous.

So it's very similar to the local rule in this 

court with respect to a specific type of master, the 

Probate Commissioner, and the Nevada Supreme Court talks 

about the limited scope of review and drops a footnote 

and the footnote cites the federal clear error standard.  

And the footnote says, and I'll read it slowly:

It is only instances such as the 

following that permit the court to 

disregard the master's report.  The 

findings are based upon material errors 

in proceedings or a mistake of law or are 

unsupported by any substantial evidence 

or are against the clear weight of the 

evidence.  

And I would submit, your Honor, none of that has 

been shown.  In the Nevada Supreme Court in a case called 

In Re:  Estate of Bethurem, 129 Nevada 869, cited the way 
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the Nevada Supreme Court judges substantial evidence, and 

that is evidence that a reasonable mind might accept as 

adequate to support a conclusion. So as long as a 

reasonable mind can accept the evidence upon which the 

Probate Commissioner made her decision, there's no basis 

to overrule her under the clear error standard.  

And one of the things I find quite important, your 

Honor, in that paragraph that you read is that it says -- 

she says:  

However, this Commissioner views the 

current issues as shown by the instant 

opposition of the beneficiaries as 

different.  

And then she goes on to explain how they're 

different.  I would submit that she cites and thus 

incorporates by reference the opposition brief, and so 

when you look at the arguments the other side has put 

forth for basically undoing what the Probate Commissioner 

said, they are -- and I want to make sure I have them 

here -- their first argument is that it fails to analyze 

claim and issue preclusion, but she cites and thus 

incorporates by reference the opposition brief and she 

also specifies, she draws a contrast between the issues 

before on the one hand and the issues now on the other 

hand, so I believe that argument fails and it certainly 
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doesn't meet the clear error standard. 

The second argument that they make in their 

objection to recommendation is that the recommendation 

fails to articulate Nevada trust law, the same argument.  

She's referencing the Nevada trust law that is referenced 

in the opposition briefs and that includes the Third 

Restatement, Section 50, Comment E, and the other 

provisions, including NRS 163.4175, which includes that 

prefatory clause except as otherwise stated in the trust 

instruments, which is what we have here and that argument 

has never been addressed by the other side. 

THE COURT:  Got it. 

MR. SCHEARER:  And the third argument, your Honor, 

in the objection recommendation is that the Probate 

Commissioner somehow misapprehends the scope of the 

requested brief and I think that doesn't give the Probate 

Commissioner enough credit.  The motion is styled a 

motion for partial summary judgment.  As opposing counsel 

said, they took pains to point out that there's this 

alternative legal theory, which Mr. Echeverria discussed 

at length today, which is that it's possible that not 

looking at the credit shelter trust the distributions 

would be so excessive that they could violate the 

language of the marital deduction trust by itself in 

isolation, but I believe that he hasn't met the burden to 
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shut down through issue and claim preclusion the related 

argument that is very important to the court's 

disposition of the fiduciary breach claims, which is that 

you need to look at both trusts and other assets, and 

those are not issues that the court has to resolve today.  

The court merely needs to recognize that those issues are 

distinct, they're unique issues, and they were not before 

the Probate Commissioner when she made her first 

recommendation. 

And unless the court has some other questions, I'm 

happy to conclude. 

THE COURT:  I need to give Mr. Rosenauer time to 

offer new argument that hasn't been previously been 

offered. 

MR. SCHAERER:  Thank you, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you, counsel, well done to both 

of you. 

MR. ROSENAUER:  No new argument, your Honor, it 

was covered here.  As far as, Mr. Mowry's reference to 

the footnote regarding attorney's fees, you know, that 

was a very hot issue in the Chiappero case and the court 

was very direct with respect to how that got -- how that 

was solved, and I just would remind the court, because we 

had the same issue in that case.  

Other than that, your Honor, I can answer any 
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questions but able counsel certainly put it all before 

you, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Well done.  You have a chance for 

rebuttal argument, sir, if you would like. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Just real briefly, your Honor.  

There seems to be a lot of focus on the 

Restatement 50, which is not law in Nevada and, in fact, 

is trumped or is in replace of the 163.4175, which says 

that we are not to look at other assets.  The fact 

pattern in Comment E is substantially different, I think 

we pointed that out in our briefing.  That fact pattern 

dealt with when you're dealing with the same 

beneficiaries across all sets.  

Also in Judge -- across all trusts -- Commissioner 

Wright, in her ruling, said that there's -- that the 

breach of fiduciary duties issue which she saw, she said 

raised issues as to whether or not there is a breach with 

respect for all beneficiaries of all subtrusts, and 

that's not an issue here.  

The next thing I want to point out is Mr. Mowry 

made great pains to say he wasn't at the hearing 

initially.  They were copied on virtually every 

pleading -- not virtually, every pleading, and had a full 

opportunity to attend and be heard.  

THE COURT:  Is there any distinction between the 
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two daughters' positions between Mr. Rosenauer and Mr. 

Mowry -- just stand right there, I'm sorry to interrupt.  

Under the claim at issue, the preclusion analysis, I have 

to determine if there's privies -- is there any space 

between two the daughter beneficiaries of the marital 

deduction trust?  

MR. MOWRY:  No, your Honor, there is not.  There 

was a time when my client was the trustee of the Dorothy 

credit shelter trust and there was some issues there 

where I couldn't represent Ms. Chew, my law firm could 

not because there was too much of a conflict with the 

other beneficiaries being, to some extent, Mrs. Raggio 

and the grandchildren and we had issues we had to work 

out where she needed her own independent counsel. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  

Excuse me, Mr. Echeverria. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No, that's -- the issue seems to 

be on how your Honor is to interpret necessary and 

proper.  It's our position that necessary and proper 

applies to each distribution, but doesn't then elevate 

the circumstance that you have to look at everything else 

to determine whether or not it a particular distribution 

is necessary in light of everything else and to rule 

differently I think your Honor is to go afoul of NRS 

163.4175. 
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There were a couple of notes, I'm not sure how 

significant they were, but I think we can submit it on 

this basis.  

THE COURT:  All right, counsel. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  The trust speaks for itself, the 

language is there.  What they are intending or wanting to 

do is to get an accounting of the credit shelter trust of 

which of they're not beneficiaries and they want and, by 

necessity, must rewrite the trust in order to accomplish 

that.  

The issue is fairness.  Senator Raggio knew what 

he was doing, and the purpose of the marital trust was to 

create the -- put in the tax exempt portions or the tax 

deferred portions and then traditional estate planning, 

one spends down the marital trust, and he knew that.  And 

so to give effect to the Senator's desires and the 

Senator's wishes, Mr. Mowry made the point that there's 

animosity between the current wife and the beneficiaries, 

Ms. Righetti and Ms. Chew, and that's true, and that was 

existing prior to Mr. Raggio -- Senator Raggio's death 

and greatly bothered him, and I submit that that's why 

this trust is the way it is.  

We need to give intent to the settlor, Senator 

Raggio, and to adopt the beneficiaries' position in this 

case -- remainder beneficiaries' position in this case 
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would be to rewrite his intent.  I'll submit it, your 

Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

Hold on, counsel.  I'll want your help on 

something else now. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Regardless of how the court rules, 

litigation continues -- we've acknowledged litigation of 

a different scope and direction, where are we in the 

overall litigation lifecycle and can the court provide 

some intervention and assistance?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes.  We have a petition for 

approval of the accounting that was filed in, I want to 

say, April of 2015 that was scheduled for hearing, I 

believe, initially at the end of May.  Then the 

beneficiaries filed different pleadings, we got 

consolidated.  Mr. Mowry expressed some emotion over the 

Rule 11 issue, and I recall that was over whether or not 

he could sue civilly Ms. Raggio as the trustee; that 

issue was that it should have been in probate, but that's 

neither here nor there.  He eventually dismissed 

Ms. Raggio, as the trustee, and pursued the civil 

complaint as her individually, that was the issue that 

was raised there, among other things.  

But we do have the initial petition for 
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accounting.  There has been, I think, an extension that 

they have the right to continue to object to subsequent 

accountings, we have submitted subsequent accountings, so 

I think we can -- we can get that going. 

THE COURT:  Can that accounting be approved or 

disapproved in isolation from the other litigation or are 

they all so integrated they must be resolved at in one 

step?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  We believe that they can be 

approved separately.  The other litigation on breach of 

fiduciary duties, the accounting sets forth the 

accounting of the marital trust and where the funds were 

spent and for what.  Under our theory of the case, that 

can be approved.  

If the theory of the case is, wait a minute, you 

got to give us an accounting of the credit shelter trust 

so that we can determine if -- whatever they want to 

determine, then it may not be.  Maybe that's why we need 

to do a whole bunch of discovery.  

But the big issue here, your Honor, is to what 

extent are all these parties supposed to spend money on a 

credit shelter trust if they're not entitled to an 

accounting of it?  And so that's -- that's really what is 

driving it.  The issue to be decided is to what extent 

can we look at the credit shelter trust.  I think once 
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that issue is resolved, then we can go on. 

THE COURT:  And by going on, you contemplate what?  

What is -- what is the pendency of this litigation look 

like before adjudication?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Is the money that the trustee is 

withdrawing and spending from the marital trust necessary 

and proper for her support. 

THE COURT:  Right.  I understand.  I'm asking -- 

I'm not asking that question.  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I misunderstood. 

THE COURT:  So typically we establish a trial date 

and we work backwards, and I'm trying to understand where 

we are in that cycle and what I can do to help get us to 

the trial date. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  We don't have the trial date.  

There is discovery motions pending which -- a motion 

pending. 

THE COURT:  Which is held in abeyance essentially 

until this decision?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes, your Honor, as I understand. 

THE COURT:  So how long will trial -- well, I know 

you need to know the scope of the trial and so you've 

kind of got one eye closed as you answer the question, 

but worst case scenario everything is tried, how long 

will trial take and how far in the distance should trial 
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be set?  

MR. SCHEARER:  Your Honor, thank you.  I think 

that this is a five-day trial if it's tried to the bench.  

Of course, there is no trial date set so the ability to 

request any type of jury or anything else has not -- that 

trigger hasn't been pulled yet.  I think that -- that the 

amount of discovery that is -- that would have to be 

produced, written discovery, if indeed our position is 

adopted, we would need some time.  It's going to be 

voluminous.

Mr. Echeverria had the chance to depose both 

Ms. Chew and Ms. Righetti already, so that has been taken 

care of.  We still have to make it through the expert 

hoops, also.  So, you know, with that in mind, you know, 

yes, there's a little bit of a log jamb right now with 

respect to this decision, the motion to compel that is 

pending, and then that -- that, again, like you said, 

defines scope. 

THE COURT:  Please don't infer anything from my 

question -- okay -- I'm not foreshadowing an answer, but 

if you were able to look at credit shelter trust details, 

do you know if accountings have been prepared and 

distributed to the credit shelter trust beneficiaries, 

it's just a matter of copying and forwarding them over, 

or do they have to be created in the first instance?  
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MR. SCHEARER:  I do not know, your Honor, if 

credit shelter accountings has been done, but the court 

needs to understand there is a distinction.  

The accountings that are due for -- for trusts on 

a regular basis look at trust performance and those types 

of things, and here we're going a little bit deeper 

because if you look at one side of the ledger for the 

regular trust-type accounting, you will see $20,000 a 

month January, February, March, all the way through, you 

don't have any chance to look at what happened to that 

money.  Because, again, the trustee has the obligation to 

insure that the beneficiary is using the money in the 

manner that is articulated in the trust.  So if the trust 

is for, let's say, transportation and the beneficiary is 

using it for tuition then, you know, there's a -- there's 

another set of analysis that has to go on there. 

THE COURT:  Right.  I understand.  So -- so in the 

best -- under the worst case scenario for the scope of 

trial, what is the best case scenario for when trial -- 

when we will be prepared for trial?  September, next 

February?  I'm trying to get an idea of --

MR. ROSENAUER:  If I may, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- of trial dates. 

MR. ROSENAUER:  Your Honor, if I look at the track 

record of this case, I'm thinking a year because there 
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has been no battle that has not been fought in this whole 

thing, even up to, as Mr. Mowry described, Rule 11 type 

of battles. 

THE COURT:  So you contemplate a five-day bench 

trial, and I understand that you reserved the word jury 

but you contemplate a five-day bench trial a year out?  

MR. ROSENAUER:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Echeverria, do you agree or 

disagree, five-day bench trial a year out?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I agree and disagree.  I'm not 

sure that all of the issues are bench tried, I want to 

look at that.  Depending on the amount of discovery, 

we've done -- first of all, Ms. Chew's deposition has not 

been finished because she had some physical issues that 

she felt she couldn't continue that day so -- but that's 

minor.  Ms. Raggio's deposition has not been set.  I 

think a lot of this will depend on the scope of 

discovery, what are they entitled to inquire into.  

And if we're going to get into the credit shelter 

trust, we've already produced something around 2,000 

pages of documents on the marital trust.  I think there 

are some more to be produced pending the execution of a 

protective order.  I don't know how long they want to 

take to look at all that stuff, but we have now 

apparently three years of accountings that we're looking 
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at that have been held in abeyance.  We've supplied the 

accountings annually but they have a running objection to 

the entire set of accountings.  

So I think it could likely take two weeks or more.

THE COURT:  Just based upon my experience this 

morning, I'm not confident that a five-day reservation of 

time would be appropriate.  I would much rather reserve 

more time and compress it into fewer days than to expire 

the days allotted and have to figure it out. 

Counsel, this is just for my -- this is in no way 

related to my question on the Commissioner's 

recommendation, I'm now just exploring what happens after 

today.  Ballpark of the fees that have been spent in 

their entirety on this dispute, fees always become 

relevant at some point when trust corpus is the source of 

the fees, can you ballpark within 30- or $50,000 how much 

you've charged your client so far?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No, I cannot.  But I'd be happy 

to look at what the -- the records show and provide that 

to the court, but I can't do it -- whatever number I 

would give you today would be a guess.  

THE COURT:  That's all right, I'll accept a guess.  

Are we talking about $100,000 or $500.000?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Closer to a hundred. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  The same question 
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I'll ask -- 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  But I'm not sure what Holland & 

Hart has charged. 

MS. REID:  Probably 200. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  They indicate they're in the 200 

range.  I'm not sure. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And to the respective 

daughters' counsel?  

MR. MOWRY:  I believe we had some other fees from 

the Dorothy Raggio Credit Shelter Trust and working 

through some of the issues with Mr. Echeverria on the 

state tax return when we had to hire Steve Lynn to help 

us figure out some issues.  I'd say we're -- we're not at 

a hundred for Leslie. 

THE COURT:  You are not?  

MR. MOWRY:  We are not. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. ROSENAUER:  And I can tell we're not -- we're 

in the $50,000 range, as I recall, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Somewhere probably, in its 

entirety, $400,000 or less, in that ballpark roughly 

somewhere.  And fees from here to the last day of trial, 

another half million dollars?  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Probably. 

THE COURT:  Does anybody disagree?  
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MR. MOWRY:  No. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. ROSENAUER:  Don't disagree, your Honor. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Perhaps in light of that, your 

Honor, you might consider sending us all to a settlement 

conference, and maybe that's what you're contemplating 

already. 

THE COURT:  I actually enjoy this case.  It's a 

rare privilege to have excellent moving papers and 

excellent oral arguments and interesting issues that are 

new, so selfishly I would love this case to continue but 

I -- I want to be careful of how I -- this is not 

either -- no attorney -- every attorney here knows how to 

resolve a case and when to resolve a case.  I hadn't 

thought about sending everybody to settlement conference.  

I'm trying to figure out, it's going to cost 

$500,000 to settle the marital deduction trust, and I can 

assure you the issues aren't nearly as clear to the court 

as they are from each one of your advocacy seats.  

Do you want me to send you to settlement 

conference?  That's not why I was asking.  I was actually 

asking because in trust cases I'm getting pretty stingy 

about allowing trust corpus to fund exhaustive 

litigation.  I think that the litigation decision-maker 

must bear some risks for the litigation decisions, that's 
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why I'm asking the question.  

And Mr. Rosenauer mentioned a case where he, I 

think, took a $200,000 client trust account deposit and 

closed it even though it was trust corpus and the trustee 

wanted it because that's how I'm looking at things now, 

that's why I ask.  

Should I send everybody to settlement conference?  

MR. MOWRY:  I don't know yet, your Honor.  Perhaps 

once we get a ruling on this particular issue, it may be 

appropriate.  And I was going to suggest, unless your 

Honor wanted to be the settlement judge, which we would 

have no objection to, of course, would be Judge Simons. 

THE COURT:  I don't want to be the settlement 

judge.  I will be the presiding judge, whether it be 

bench or jury, and I just don't attempt to settle cases 

when I'm the presiding judge. 

MR. MOWRY:  Certainly.  I understand. 

THE COURT:  Frankly, you should settle, everyone 

knows that, so my hope that I am invited into dispute is 

irrelevant.  You need to do what is best for your 

clients.  Okay. 

So just a rough -- so I'm probably going to set 

this for 10 days a year out and contemplate a million 

dollars in combined fees, and I'll just use that within 

my scheduling decisions, not my review of the 
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Commissioner's recommendation. 

Anything else that I need to resolve this morning?  

MR. MOWRY:  No, your Honor. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Ms. Reid asked a great question.  

Do you want this case to proceed in front of you on the 

rest of the matters?  

THE COURT:  I've actually shown my hand.  I'm 

starting to formulate the order in my mind, and there are 

some things I want to look at and think about as to the 

substance of the objection, but I've already seen a final 

sentence where I write, this matter is removed from the 

Probate Commissioner's office and tendered up to the 

District Court.  I think that with this dispute it's 

appropriate to bypass that intervening level and we'll 

just put it onto a litigation track. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  That's my sense of what I'm going to 

do. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Thank you, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Very well done.  It was welcome.  

Thank you.  

Court will stand in recess. 

(At 10:45 a.m., court adjourned.) 

* * *
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STATE OF NEVADA       ) 
                      )  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE      ) 

 

              I, ERIN T. FERRETTO, an Official Reporter 

of the Second Judicial District Court of the State of 

Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY: 

              That I was present in Department No. 15 of 

the above-entitled Court on TUESDAY, APRIL 3RD, 2018, and 

took verbatim stenotype notes of the proceedings had upon 

the matter captioned within, and thereafter transcribed 

them into typewriting as herein appears; 

              That the foregoing transcript is a full, 

true and correct transcription of my stenotype notes of 

said proceedings.

DATED:  This 26th day of June, 2018.

               /s/ Erin T. Ferretto  
                           ___________________________  
                           ERIN T. FERRETTO, CCR #281
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just to ensure that a case conference report is filed with 

year away.  I typically have these early case conferences, 

noticed that our nonjury trial is scheduled for more than a 

Counsel, I've entered a series of orders.  I 

Trust, trustees, and beneficiaries.   

This is PR13-00624 involving the Raggio Family 

where to sit.  And I embarrassed myself.   

time I walked into a courtroom as a lawyer.  I had no idea 

THE COURT:  That reminds me of the very first 

have done that.  Rules are rules.   

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yeah, and I probably shouldn't 

position in front of the jury.   

THE COURT:  You've relinquished your prime 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I'm sorry?   

position.   

THE COURT:  You've relinquished your prime 

represent the defendant.  So.   

plaintiff and sitting next to the jury.  In this case I 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Well, I'm used to being the 

the courtroom this time.   

THE COURT:  You've taken opposite positions in 
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guess on the eighth day after a male child is born, there 

carrying twins.  And she is a convert to Judaism, and I 

induced recently.  She went beyond full term.  She was 

today -- he would like to be here -- but his daughter was 

note, actually, that the reason why Mr. Mowry is not here 

in this case.  And the reason I say that -- and I want to 

the Court took the bench, that that may not be enough time 

had a very brief conversation with Mr. Echeverria before 

There's been some discussion on our side, and we 

trial date of July 22nd, 2019.   

would note is that we have settled at the last hearing on a 

MR. SCHAERER:  Your Honor, the only thing I 

that is not disclosed in the file materials?   

Counsel, is there anything that I need to know 

present.  And Mr. Echeverria is present.   

Mr. Schaerer is present.  Mr. Rosenauer is 

know, any intervention I can provide.   

begin by telling me if there's anything the Court needs to 

for having this hearing, but I wish to invite counsel to 

have all dates established.  So that's the -- my purpose 

haven't followed the normal protocols for ensuring that we 

And because this began as a trust matter, I 

case conference report.   

all appropriate deadlines as a scheduling order within the   1
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commissioner.  And we would like to do that.  But we fear 

encouraged us to submit matters to the discovery 

your most recent discovery order where I think you 

We actually did notice the Court's footnote in 

tong on every discovery that we request.   

scorched earth policy, that they will fight us hammer and 

side, with all respect to Mr. Echeverria, is adopting a 

this litigation has been going, we fear that the other 

have the burden to put on an affirmative case.  The way 

Since we are in the posture of plaintiff, we 

have enough time to conduct all the discovery we need.   

length about this case, and we are worried that we may not 

But he, he and I have had conversations at 

today.  And he is unable to be here today.   

during the ceremony.  So he has to be in New York City 

said this -- but respected, and he gets to hold the baby 

of older -- and he would probably be upset with me if I 

honor as the sandek, which I guess is someone who is sort 

Covenant of Abraham, and he has been given position of 

MR. SCHAERER:  I think it has to do with the 

me. 

THE COURT:  No, no.  It's very interesting to 

I'm not an expert.   

has to be a bris, which has to do with the covenant -- and   1
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thought I would know something.  And so I told the 

The very first case I ever tried as a judge, I 

into a courtroom, and I didn't know where to sit.   

father.  I just talked about the very first time I walked 

think about prior experiences I've had.  I sound like my 

become older than I expected, quickly, because all I do is 

I'll hear from Mr. Echeverria.  I think I've 

backwards.   

the trial date is the anchor point from which we work 

scheduling order I want to sign because it is predicated -- 

THE COURT:  Well, that complicates the 

MR. ROSENAUER:  Nothing, your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Mr. Rosenauer.   

MR. SCHAERER:  Nothing at this time, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Anything else?   

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes, your Honor.  

continue?   

THE COURT:  So you are making an oral motion to 

and dates off of that new trial date.   

January of 20/20.  And then keying all discovery deadlines 

perhaps pushing back the July 2019 trial date to maybe 

So we would like at least the bench to consider 

and an additional delay in the discovery process.   

that every single time we do that, there will be an appeal,   1
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issue at that time.  But I think the trial date could 

discovery is an issue, then I think we can address that 

would suggest, your Honor, that we keep the trial date.  If 

of resent the characterizations of the defense.  And I 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  No, your Honor.  But I, I kind 

oral motion to continue?   

Mr. Echeverria, do you have an opinion about the 

makes people move differently.   

which I consider genius, is the firm trial date.  It just 

the genius of our -- one of the principles of our system, 

discovery cutoff date, what has been thwarted, because of 

like to see as discovery progresses, as we approach the 

talking about a trial date 13 months from now?  I would 

Although, my initial reaction is why are we even 

Mr. Schaerer and Mr. Mowry.   

legitimate statement of concern from counsel I respect, 

So I want to honor and -- I want to honor a 

and find a day there.   

day after day for another 60 days.  We'd find a day here 

case piecemeal, day after day -- it was a bench trial -- 

out, I was completely wrong, and we ended up trying that 

respected.  It's because I have 14 years.  And as it turns 

wrong.  These were very seasoned attorneys that I 

attorneys that their estimation of the trial time was   1
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It's a couple of weeks before the holidays.   

THE COURT:  Counsel, will that work for you?  

Wednesday, December 12th at 4:00 p.m.  

THE CLERK:  Our status conference will be 

December, I suppose.   

I hope that I'm wrong.  We'll find out in 

that's a good resolution.   

MR. SCHAERER:  Thank you, your Honor.  I think 

day, some time probably the second week of December.   

So Ms. Clerk, quick hearing date the end of the 

prediction is accurate or inaccurate.   

also want to give six months of time to see if, if your 

don't want to continue the trial date to next April, but I 

discovery, it's a decision today without prejudice.  So I 

cause for continuing discovery because of the undeveloped 

trial date.  But if I, I -- if I do find that there is good 

THE COURT:  It's too soon for me to move the 

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes.   

the phrase.   

been used for scorched earth litigation.  I think that was 

December, Ms. Clerk, to determine if hammer and tong have 

trial date now.  And I'm going to set a hearing in 

THE COURT:  Let's -- I'm going to preserve the 

stand, and let's see where we go.     1
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Number 6, pretrial motions, including 

trial.   

limine, will have the same meaning because this is a bench 

I'm not sure that paragraph 5, motions in 

disclosures.   

Expert disclosures.  Rebuttal expert 

here.    

Pleadings or joined parties.  That may not be relevant 

We can find a date working backwards for motions to amend.  

And so we therefore know when discovery will be completed.  

We now know -- well, we do know the trial date.  

me what information we cannot include today.   

If you'll turn to page 2, I'd like you to tell 

prepared before today.   

Counsel, this is just a template that my staff 

each table, if you would, please.   

please.  I'd like to hand out the scheduling order.  One to 

Deputy, if you'd approach for just a moment, 

THE COURT:  All right.   

Honor.   

MR. SCHAERER:  I appear to be free as well, your 

THE COURT:  Yes, sir.   

on the 12th, December 12th at 4:00 o'clock.   

MR. ROSENAUER:  Rosenauer is fine, your Honor,   1
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not here today, and I'd like to confirm with her, her 

you sob stories, but Tamara Reid, has also delivered and is 

there, your Honor, is -- I don't want to get up and tell 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  The only thing I would request 

THE COURT:  Mr. Echeverria?   

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes, your Honor.   

handwritten form into a written order, that I'll sign.   

Mr. Rosenauer.  And then we'll convert the draft 

the courtroom, working with Mr. Echeverria and 

will have you handwrite all of the entries before you leave 

representing the plaintiff -- Shareer -- (pronunciation) I 

THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Schaerer 

can.   

MR. SCHAERER:  No, your Honor.  I believe we 

see any reason why we wouldn't.   

Can we fill all this in today, Counsel?  I can't 

12th.   

And number 9, we have a pretrial set for July 

No jury instructions.   

trial.  And I very much like oral closing arguments.   

opening statements, and we go right to witnesses in a bench 

statements.  In fact, I regularly ask that they supplant 

In a bench trial I very much like trial 

dispositive motions, to be submitted by a certain date.     1

  2

  3

  4

  5

  6

  7

  8

  9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

10

PA-0794



insert the dates.   

email these to you, if you want, and then you can just 

THE COURT:  Yes, sir.  And one of my staff will 

MR. SCHAERER:  We can do that, your Honor.   

THE COURT:  A final.  Yes, sir. 

MR. SCHAERER:  A final, yes.   

we'll have you submit --  

now.  I don't care if that's two weeks from now.  And then 

THE COURT:  I don't care if that's a week from 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Perfect. 

in my presence for the two of you talk to each other.   

Why don't I have you just schedule a time today 

THE COURT:  Oh, give her some time.   

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Yes.   

This is -- Ms. Tamara Reid, just gave birth?   

THE COURT:  Don't even try to get a hold of her. 

Monday.  I apologize. 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Actually, I'm out of town 

THE COURT:  Oh, yes.  Please don't --  

can agree to submit something on Monday --  

I'm sure I can get a hold of her secretary.  And maybe we 

frankly.  And I don't know if I can get a hold of her, but 

I haven't been able to talk to her, quite 

availability on the prospective dates.     1
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perhaps try to do that today, and if we need to switch 

date -- we have all counsel here, and we might as well 

calendar and see which day she's available, and which 

get her assistant on the line and take a look at her 

wondering if perhaps we could maybe step outside and try to 

done, without inconveniencing Ms. Reid at all, I was 

is possible, just in the interest of trying to get things 

MR. SCHAERER:  Your Honor, I don't know if this 

me as long as it's in.   

This is ministerial.  It just doesn't matter to 

presume she's taking a little bit of time off.   

THE COURT:  I would allow that if she's -- I 

your Honor?   

MR. ROSENAUER:  Should we go into July then, 

actually don't want you bothering her at the moment.   

THE COURT:  My biggest concern is Ms. Reid.  I 

Wednesday would be a good time.   

Wednesday.  I have to be in San Francisco on Thursday.  So 

Philadelphia on Monday and Tuesday.  And I'm back 

morning and I hadn't heard back.  So I can, I'll be in 

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  I had a call in to him this 

that for the minute.   

when you're going to talk to each other, and I'll just note 

So would you look at your calendars and tell me   1
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concluded.) 

(Whereupon the proceedings were 

 

Good day to all of you.   

Thank you. 

THE COURT:  I'll be in chambers if you need me.  

MR. ECHEVERRIA:  Thank you, your Honor.   

you, your Honor.   

MR. SCHAERER:  We'll take a little time.  Thank 

MR. ROSENAUER:  Thank you, your Honor.   

All right.  I don't have anything else today.   

THE COURT:  So let's get it done any way we can. 

MR. SCHAERER:  Yes, your Honor.   

we're not together.   

it's missed emails and telephone calls for a month when 

the Court is that it's magic when we're together, and then 

side of the courtroom, but my experience with counsel and 

I'm actually not throwing darts out on either 

pick a date to talk in the future, if not today.   

THE COURT:  That's the only reason why I say 

perhaps even at the December status hearing.  

something, perhaps a date later on, we can discuss that,   1
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